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& ASSOCIATES .

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDI TOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TKTOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

dccompanying financial statements of TK Toll Road Private Limited
h comprise the Baja nce Sheet as ar 31+ March, 2017, the Staternent of

Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and 3 summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standatlone Financial Statements

2. The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance ( including other comprehensive in come), cash flows and changes in equity of

the Company in accordance
including the Indian Accounti

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
ng Standards specified in the Companies {Indian Accou nting

operating effectively for ensuring the dccuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the Préparation and presentation of the financial statements that Bive a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Our responsi bility is to ex

based on our audir.

Press an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial statements

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accoun ting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to b2 included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there undar,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards op Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financlal statements are free from material misstatement,

4. An audit involves performin,
the disclosures in the financi
judgment, including the ass

E procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
al statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
essment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or srror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
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statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial tontrols system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the dappropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overal]
presentation of the financial statements,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinicn on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

Other Matter

7. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these standalone
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued staty tory financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which were audited by us, on
which we expressed an unmodified opinion vide our report dated May 14, 2016 and May
18, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the company in transition to Ind AS have been audited by
L5,

Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

B. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and cxplanations given to us, we give in
Annexure - "A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 2 and 4 of the order.

9. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books
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¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and lLoss {including other comprehensjve
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Reportare in agreement with the books of account

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directars is disqualified as on
31= March, 2017 fram being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give oyr separate report
in “Annexure - B”,

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i} The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact its financial position-

ii} Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material foreseeable
losses an its long term contracts that may require any provisicning

iii} In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable,

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, Based on audit procedures and relying
on the management reprasentation we report that the disclosures are in
aceordance with books of account maintained by the GCompany and as produced
to us by the Management - Refer Note 37

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

-;;-:2‘: {

If_ " CA Narendra Khandal
Pariner
M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - A to the Independent Audifors Report

Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of TK Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

i)

iii)

vi)

(a) The company is maintaining Broper records showing ful| particulars, with respect to its
fixed assets comprising of Intangible Assets representing toll collection rights.

[b) The fixed assets of the tompany have heen physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification, In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(€}  According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no immovabhle
properties included in the fixed assets of the company and actordingly the reporting
requirements under sub clayse (c] of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities and therefore does
not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (ii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013, Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and
(c) of Clause (iii} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any depasits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable,

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues inc uding provident fund, employecs’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of cxcise, value added tax, cess
and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in
India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
dgmounts in respect of the aforesaid stam tory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii}) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information and

ix}

X)

xii)

Xiii)

xiv)

xv)

xvi)

explanations provided hy the management we are of the opinion that the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions or Debenture Holders. The
company does not have any borrowings from government,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken by the company have beep ultimately utilised fur the purpose for which they were
taken. Further, the company has not raised any funds by way of initial / turther public offer,

RBased on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements ang as per the information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that we have neither come ACross any instance of fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case hy the management.

managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

According to the information and eXplanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the Act
where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards,

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or Persons connected with them,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not required to be registered under Section 45 — IA of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

For MKPS & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

5

4

“—’CANa rendra'ﬂﬁiﬁ'd:a;"

Aartner
"~ M No. 065025
Mumbai, April 14,2017
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report

Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to the members of TK Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the interna] financial controls over fina ncial reporting of TK Toll Road Private
Limited (“the Lompany”) as of March 3L, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Fin ancial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential tomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were Operating effectively for ensu ring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to eXpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Dver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of interna financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, bath issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all materia) respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financjal reporting, assessing the risk that 4 material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstaterient of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's interral financial controls system over financial reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonahle detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded 45 Nevessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
vompany are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 3 material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control aver financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 201 7, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

—

i

{ arendra Khandal
b Partner

“M No. 065025

Mumbaj, April 14,2017
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TK Toll Road Private Limited
Balance Shegt

¥ Millions
Particulars i ASEE _ Asat
ki Note  March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
|
ASSETS |
Non-current assats |
{2} Intangible assats 4 B.822.55 8,894 95 7032 22
(5] Daferred tax assets (net) 27c 134 61 8218 32.34
{c) Other non - current assats & 3038 34.38 30.33
Current agseats !
{8) Financial Assotg
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 5a 8.21 6.38 1127
(i} Cther financial ezzat 5b 15.34 728 6.44
ib] Current Tax Assets [Maf} 4.05 2.00 0.gz
o) Other current aseets 7 7 46 85 82 22.28
Total Asscls DEIJ.?_= ?,1_‘] 0.02 JF;I' 35.85
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
[a) Equity share capita) & 127.56 127.56 127.58
(b} Subordinated debt {in nature of Edquity) Sa 1.712.70 1,5822.70 1,.377.70
) Other equity g 1245683 1,335.52 1,440.75
Total Equity 3,085.88 2.988.78 294800
LIABILITIES |
Mon-current liabilities [
(&) Financial Liabilitieg |
{i) Borrowings 10a 2 884,78 3,238 52 3,498 44
(i) Other financial liabilities 12b - 153.[11 14110
(2} Provisions 13b 238,18 16721 g2.05
Current liabilities
18] Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10b 75,00 75.00 -
(i) Trade payables b & | 194 89 182,895 281,93
{iiiy Other financial liabilities 12a 539.97 2B5.70 175.71
(b} Othar current lfabilitizg 14 1.06 4.78 0.56
(€] Provisions 13a 0.08 0.07 0.os
Total Equity and Liabllities 7,020.72 7,110.02 7,135.85
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and othar explanatory infarmtaion (notes) are an integral part of
the Financial Statements. 1

This is the Balance Sheet referred 1o in our report of even date

For MK P 8 & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No, 302014E

\._Mapbndra Khandal

Fartnor

Mambership No. © 05028
Dara: 14th April 2017
Placs  Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board

Kaushlk Pal
Director Chrecho
DIN:05237230 DIM:07 9

Chief Financial Officar
Data: 14th April 2017
Place . Mumbal

-
Madan Riyani |

————.

71

PR e
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TK Toll Road Private Limited |
Statement of Profit and Loss

T Millions
Particulars _ Note Year ended Year ended
% March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Revenue from Operations 15 511.08 506,41
Other Income 16 6.79 1.45
Total Incoma 517.86 507.87
Expensas
Tall Qperation and Maintainence expenses b 170.90 148.87
Employee banefits Expenso 18 1217 13.28
Finance cosls 19 403 /0 430 38
Amortization Bxpense 4 55,44 4515
Dther expenses 20 1323 | 14.90
Total expenses B59.34 | BB2 66
| L2
Profit / (loss}) before tax (141.48) | (154.79)
|
Tax expense
Diefarrad fax charge/{credit) (52.13) (49.75)
Profit/(Loss) for the year ' (B9.35) (105.04)

COther Comprehensive Income

(i} ltems that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss :
Remeasurements of nat defined (0.83) (0.28)
benefit plans ; Gains / {Loss)

(i} Income tax relating to items that will not

be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 0.29) | {0.10)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (0.54) | (0.19)
Total Comprehensive Income {{Loss) for the year (89.89) {105.22)

Earnings per equity share of 10 each I
Basic & Diluted 3z (7.00) (8.23)

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informiaion {notes) are an integral part of
the Financial Statemenis.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date,

ForMKF S & Associates For and on bahalf of the Board

Chariered Accountants

Firm's Regn, No. 302014E n

ey f -

) S
"“Narghdra Khandal Kaushik Pal” :

Parfner Director AP Dir

Membership No. : 065025 DIN:0523 .

Date: 14th April 2017 L1

Flace ;: Mumhbaij -

Yogksh Jain

Chief Financial Officer
Date: 14th April 2017
Place : Mumbai
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v AR Rdad Fhvate Limited

Cash flow Statomant
T Milllons
Particulars Year ended Year ended
—DBlarch 31, 2047 —Dlarch 31,2018
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit bofore tax
1 1585,
Adfustments for v Hesem
Amartisation expansas 58,44 45 15
Injha_resl MmCome (042 s
Dividend Incoma {0.61) [0LBEY
Interest expense 40380 | 430,38
J20.82 | 3za8.80
Cash Gensrated fram Oparations before |
working capital changes
Adiusgiments fur |
{lncresse)dacransy in financial 255818 axcapl for invastnonis {8.05; (0.85)
tincreaselfidecresse in other current assats 79.26 (84 54
Incrasalidecraass) in trade payables 11.92 (B8.97)
[rereaseidesresse) in other financiel fiablities o410 218
Incressul{decrassa) in provisione 3274 S4.30
Increaserdacraasa) in other curant Iraibilities [2 B0y 4.0
113.97 (61.68)
Cash generaled from operations 433.79 264,92
Taxies (paid) net of refunds (2.08) {1.08}
Mat cash generated Irom operating activities - [A] 431.73 263,84

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: |
Furchasesale proceeds of mitangible assets (including mtengible 16.30

9g.22
833051 under devalopment) |
Purchase of current investmants nel of proceads) 0.51 .88
interesl recaived 0.42 | -
Not cash {used in) / generatod from investing activitios - [B] 17.24 ] B7.08
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: |
Proceeds from Sub-deht 180,00 | 145.00
Proceeds from inter-corparate deposits (shor term borrowirgs) - 75.00
Procesds from long tarm bermowings {0.00) (0,00
Repayment of long tarm barrowings [263.40) {175.60)
Interest paid (375 74) (410.20)
Not cash used in financing activities - [C] (445.14) (355 80}
Mt increasaf{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C) [0.17) 4.88)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yizar 638 11.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 821 [T
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Currant accounts 4,45 438
Caposits with maturity of lass thar threa manths = -
Cash en hane 1.78 2.02
Total Cash and cash equivalents 621 | & 53

Weote. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set oul in Ind AS T 'Siatemamtf Cash Flows',

The accompanying summary of aignificant accounting palicies and oiher explanatory informtaion [notes} ars an inlegral part |
Staiements

Thig le the Cash Flow statemant referad o in our report of evien data. |

the Firgrclal

For M K P 5 & Associates Ferand on behalf of the Board
Charlercd Accountants

Firr's Riegn, Ma. 309014E

l::,__.’ﬁzéndm Khandal Kauwshik Pal

el I:qu;__:tar
Membership Mo, : 084025 DIN:0527 240
Diate: i April 2017
Plzce © Mumbai

‘r:'u-ﬁlsh Jain U

Chiaf Financial Officar
Date: 14th April 2017 |
Place - Mumbai |
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TK Toll Road Private Limited |
Statement of Changes in Equity

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

T Millions
Balance at the Changes in Balance at the
Note |Beginning of the efuity share | end of the year
yoar capital during
As at 01st April, 2015 ' 127 58 o 127.56
As at 375t March, 2018 8 127 56 - 127.56
As at 31st March, 2017 [ 127 56 - 127.56
B. OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus
N S —
o Sacurities Retained T
Promium Earnings
Reseryg
Balance at April 01, 2015 . 1.337.14 103.60 1.440.75
Prcfil for the year (105.04)| | (106.04)
Debenture Rademption Reserve =
Other comprehensive incoma for the year {0.19) 10.18)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - (106.22) (105.22)
Transaction with awners in their capacity as cwners
Issue of equity shares. %
Dividend Paid
Balance at 31st March 201§ 1,337 .14 (1.62) 1,335.52
Balance at April 01, 2015 1,337.14 (1.62) 1,335.52
Profit for the year 188.35) | (89.35)
Debenture Redemption Reserve af -
Cther comprehansive income for the year 10.54) {0.54)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (89.89) (89.89)
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners [

Issue of equity shares -
Dividend Paid 2
Balance at 31st March, 2017 1,337.14 (91.52) 1,245.63

As per our report of even date attached
For MK P 5 & Associates For and an behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 302014E ™
[
g ;
e -
rendra Khandal Kaushik Pal p {;‘adda Biyani
artner Diractor / ~Dlirect
 Membership No. - 065025 oiN:05237230 /R  -DIN;07130374
Date: 141h April 2017 .
Place : Mumbaj

R ' |
. \\; 4
Yogesh Jain |

Chigf Financial Offiger  ——— |
Date. 14th April 2017
Place : Mumbai
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TK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements |

Mote 1: Corporate information

|
TK Taoll Rn_ad Private Limited ithe "Project SPV") has been awarded on Build, Ciperate ang Transfer {(BOT) basis,
strengthening of the existing carmageway from Km. 138.80 tg Km. 218 on the Trichy — Karur section of Mational
Highway No 67 in the Stata of Tamil Nadu and widening thereof to 4 lanes and its improvernent, operation ang
maintenance through a ‘concesszion on Buid, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basig under the Concession
Agreamen| dated July 18 2007 with Metionai Highways Authority of India. The Coneession Agreement is for ]
year of 30 years from January 15, 2008, being the appainted Date staled in Jause 1.1 of the sajy agreement.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Slatemeants of tha Company comprises of Balance Sheet Slatement of Proftt and Loss,

Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Cranges in Equity, a summary of significant acsounling palicies,
notes and ather explanatory nformation.

These Financial Staternents comply in all matarial aspects wit Ingian Accounting Standardd (ind AS)
netificd under Scction 132 of the Cumpanies Act, 2013 {the Acl) [Companies {Indign Aecounling
Slandards) Rules, 2018] and other relevant provisiong of the Acl. These Financial Statements have besn
Prepared in accordance with tha requiremnants of the information and disclosures mandated by|Schedule
Il of the Act, applicable Ind AS ofher #pplicable pronouncemants and regulalicns. These Financial
Statements are tha first Financial Statements of tha Company under Ind AS Tha Financial Statdments up
to year ended 31 March 2016 ware Prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2008 (as amendad) and cther relevant provisions of the Act

These Financial Statements have been pieparad on 5 historical cast basis, except for certain assats and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value. For tha purpose of preparation of these Financial
Stalements, the Irensition date to Ind AS is considered as April 1, 2015,

These Financisl Statements dre presented in ¥ Milllons, excapt where othenyise indicaled
Accounting standards issued but not yot effective

Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers' have been published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA} but are not yet effective. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reporting useful information to users
of the financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash fiows
arising from an entity’s contract with customers. Ind AS 115 supersedes other revenue slandards i.e, Ind
A3 11 and Ind AS 18 nolified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA]. Management has undertaker an
assessment of the impact of this standard @nd does not believe that the impact would be material

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting palicies
3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liakilities in the balance sheet based on current/ rjon-currant

classification i

An assel is treated as currant when it is;

* Expected to be realised or intended to he sold er consumed in nermal operating cycle

*  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reparting period, or

= Cash or cash eguivaient unless restrictad from being exchanged or ysed ta settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reparting period

All other assats are classified as non-current,
A ligkility is current whan:

= Itis expected to be settlad In normal oparating cycle _
Itis dug to be sattled within twelve monthe after the reparting pericd, ar
= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at leas twalve monthsy sfer
the reparting period
|
£l other liabilities are classified as non-currant

Deferred tax assols and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and lighililies

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, The Cormpany has identified twelve months as jte aperating cycla
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32 Foreign currencies

3.3

Functional and Presentation curreney !

Ite_r'ns included in the Financial Statements of the Company are Measured using the currency of the
pnmary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The' Financial
Slatements are prezented in Indian Rupees (¥), which Is the Company's functional and pﬁ:\senlstlﬁn
X |

Transactions and balan ces |

Foreign currency transactione are franslated into the functipnal Currensy using the exchange jates
prevailing &t the dates of the transactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
slliement of suck transactions and from the fransiation at Yearend exchange rates of monetary assets

and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss wilh an
axceplion of the following -

Under Ind A5 21 exchenge differences arising on the translation/zetiicment of non=monctary itam should
be treated as income ar loss in Statemeant of Profit #nd Loss. However, Ind A5 101 gives an exemption for
existing long term faraign CUrrancy non-monetary items wherain the Company ean continue the palicy
adopted for restment of exchange differences ariging an long-term foraign currency monetary items
pertaining to the acquisition of 5 depreciable asset far tems recognized an or before March 31, 2015,

For any new long term foreign eurrency nen-manetary item recagnized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting pericd, deferral‘amortization of exchange difference will not be gllowed, rather the Company will
apply Ind AS 21 for recognition of gaing and losses [

Fair value measurement |

Fair value is the price thal wolld be received (o sell an asset or paid to transfar 3 lfability in 'an ordarly
transaction between market participants zt the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or tranzfer the liability takes place either:

|
*  Inthe principal market for the assel or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the rmast advantageous market for tha asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous markat must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset ar a liakility i= measurad using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 1o
generale economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset jn its highest and best usa,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
tata are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unchesarvable inputs,

|
All assets and ligbilities for which fair value is meassured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair valye higrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest Jevel input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a wheole; f

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idanfical assets or liabilitias

Level 2- Waluation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valle
measuremnent is directly or indireclly observable

Leval 3 -Valuation technigues for which tha lewesl leval Input that is significant fo the fair value
measurament iz unobservable

For asscts and liabiiities that are recognised in the Financial Statemnonls on a recurnng hasis, the
Company determines whether fransfers have eccurred between levals In the hierarchy by ra-assessing
calegorisation [based on the lowest level input that is significant ta the fair valye Measurement us 8 whnle)
atthe end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recuring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as gerivative Instruments and unguotad financial assets measured
at fair valua
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The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset ang lizbility with relevant
external sources to determine whather the change is reasonahls,

it ; - |
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and ri]qbirilies on

tl'_le basis of the nature, characleristics and risks of the assat or ligbility and the lovel of the fair value
hierarchy ae explained abova |

This note sUmmarizes sccounting palicy for tair value, Other fair value relatad disclosures ae given in the
relsvant notes. . [

Disclosures fur valuation methods, sicnificant estimates ang assumplions of Financial instruments

tincluding those carried at amuortisad coslt {note 21} and Cuantitative disclosures of fair value measuremeant
hierarchy (note 22).

34 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measureg st {he fair valuz of the consiaration received ar receivable. The Company
FeECognizes revenue when the amounl of "evenue can be relizbly measured: whan it i3 probable thal future
ecanomic benefits will flow to the entity, and when specific criteria have boen met for the Company's
activities, a= described balow.

Toll revenuc

The income from tali revenue from operations of the facility is aceounted on recaipt basis.
Cantract revenue (construction contracts) |

Contract revenue associated with the construction of road is recognized as revenue by refere'nce o the
stage of completion of the projects at the balance shest date. The stage of completion of) project is
determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work performed Up to the balance sheel date
bears to the estimated total.co niract costs. |

Coniract cost includes costs that reiate direclly to the specific contract and sllocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be atiribuied to the contrag! activity such
as general administration costs are expens=d as incurred and classified as other operating expenses,

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized @s revenue on certainty of receipt basis

Income on investment iz recognized based on the terms of tha investmant. Income from mutual fund
scheme having fixed maturily plans is dccounted on dedlaration of dividend or gn maturity of such
investments. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assels measurad al amortised cost interast
income is recorded using the Effective Interast Rate {EIR).

|

. " i 5 |
3.5 Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Tall Road Concession rights whara it Designs, Builds, Finances, Operates ang
Transfers (DBFOT) infrastruciure used to provide public service for s epecified pariod of time. Thesc
arrangements may include Infrastructure usad in a public-to-private service conression errangement for its
entira useful fife.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The fntarsgl:'bde asset
made| is used to the extant that the Company recsives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service, The financial assat model is usad when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the granter for the aonstruclion services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two modals are combinad
to Becount scparately for each compenent, It the Company performs more than one service (ie.
sanslruction or upgrade sarvices and operaticn services) under a single contract or arrangemet,
cansideration received o receivahble is gllccated by referencs to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately dentifiable,

e
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Intangible assets modal

Intangible zszets arising out of service CONCESsIoN arrangements are dccounted for as inlangible assets
where the Company has a cantractual right to charge users of service when the projects ame completed

Hl’."f‘li‘.‘ﬂ,_ the total premium_payable to the Grantor as par the Serdco Concession Agreement is alsp
recognized as an ‘Intangible Assels and the earmesponding cbligation for committed premiem s
recegnized as premium obligation

The intangible assets is measurad al lhe fair value of consideration ransferred to acquire assat which s
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction senices deliverad.

Amaortization of concession intangible assets |
The Intangible asset recognized are amortized over the concession period on the basis of projectad tall
feventie which refiects the pattem jn which the assels cconomic benefits are comsumed. Th projecled
total tll revenue is based on tha independent traffic volume projections, Amortization is revised| in case of
Bny matersl change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 33 for dascription and
signiicant terms of the CONCESSIon agreements, |

Financial assets mode|

The financial asset made| applies when the aperator has an uncanditional right 1o receive cash or another
financial asset from the garantor in remunerstion for CONCESsion =arvices, In the case of congession
services, the cperator has such 2n unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the zonfract or the shorifall, if ary. between ameounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Coniract

Financial Assats resulling from application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recerded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading "Cther Financial Azzets” and recognized at amorlised cost,

However in case of cartain armangerments, the contract may include a payment commitment ¢n the part of
the cencession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recoverad from by charging
users of service | In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under thel Intangible
asset model

Any asset carried under concessisn arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
econcmic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the
financial assel expire, 3 j

Maintenance obligations

condition except for any enhancement elzament) ars recognized and measured at the best esii!'nah: of tha
expenditure required to settle the present obligaticn at the balance shoet date for which next resurfacing would
be required s= per the concession arrangament, The provision is discounted to its present value at @ pre-lax
rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specfic to the

liability.
Taxes

Current income Lax

Current income tax assets and liabilities arz measured at the amount expocted to ke recovered fram or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount ars those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries whera tha Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax releting to items recognized outsida the Emle!-nept of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Slatemant of Profit and Loss {gither in ather cumprehensl_'.rcnm_;umﬂ ar
In equily). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying TFEI‘ISFHI{:UDF‘I elther in olher
comprehensive incame or direclly in equity. Mansgement pericdically evaluates positions take; in the tax
relurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations arg subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions whare appropriate. ==

N
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38

39

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is previded using the balanes sheel approach on temporary diffsrences netl.ueé-n the tax

SEtses of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financia reporting purposes af the reporting
ate. '
I

Deferrad tax liabifities ang assets are racognized for all taxable lemporary differonces

Deterrad iax assets are racognized for unused tax losses to ihe axtenl that it is probable that taxablc profit
will be available 8gainst which the deductble temparary diffarences, and the carry forward of unused fax
logges can be utilizod,

The canying amount of deferred tax asssts s reviewed at each raporting date and redused tu the extant
that it is no lunger probable that sufficien* taxabis profit will ba availabla ta allow all or pal of the deforred
tax asset to be ulized Unrecognized deferred tax assels are re-assecssed at cach reporting date and are
recognized o the extant that it has become probable that future taxahio profits. will allow the deferrad tax
asset to be recovered. ‘

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are mizasured at lhe tax rates that are sxpected to apply in lhe yaar
when the assel is realized or the liability Is settied, based on tax rates (=nd tax laws) that have boen
enacted or substantively enacled at the reooring date, |

Deferred tax relating to items recognized culside the Statement of Profit and Loss is ramgnizjgzd auiside
the Staternent of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in Bquity). Deferred tax iteme
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction sither in olher comprehansive incamal ar direclly
in equity .

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceabla right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilties and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable antity ang
the same taxation auth ority.

Borrowing costs -

Bomrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
nacessarily takes a substantial pariod of tma to get ready for its intended yse or sale are capitalised as
Part of the cost of the asset All other bofrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment ta the
borrowing costs.

Leases |

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease tarm.

Premium Deferment
Fremium Deferral (i.e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium defarment) is aggregﬁted under

premium deferred obligation in the balance sheet The intarest payable on the above s aggregated under
deferred premiurn obligation. Interest an premium deferral is charged to the Statement of Profit and Lozs

310 Contingaent labilities

A contingent liability is a possible chligation that arises from past events whose exislenca will be confirmed
by the nceurrence or non-nccurrence of ane or more uncertain future cvenis beyond the control of the
Company or a present ubligation thal 13 not recognised because it 1s not probable that an outflow of
rezources will be required 1o settle tha abligation. 4 contingent liability alse ariees in extreamely rarc cases
where there is a ligbility that cannct ba retognised because it cannat be measurad reliably, The mljlinge_ni
liability i= not recognised in the bosks of accounts but its existence s disclosed in the Financial
Staterments.

i E——
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317 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
carrg,r_jng amount may not be recoverabla An impairment loss iz recofnized fo
Carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amaount, The recoverable amount
less costs of dispozal and value in usa For the Purpcees of assessing im)

in circumstances indicate that tha
r the amount by which the asset's
15 the higher of an asset's fair value
painment, assels afte arcuped at the

lowes! levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely indepcndent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assels {cash-generating unite). Men-financial assets that suffereg

impairment are reviewsad for possible reversal of the impairment gt

3.12Provisions '

Frovisions are recognized when the Company has a presant obligation (legal ar constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is prebable that an outflew of resources embodying esonomic benofits will ke required to
settle the obligation and a relighle estirmale can be made of the amount of the obligation When the
Company expects Bome or all of 8 provision o be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized ae a
Eeparale asset, bul only when the reimbursermant is virlually certain, The expensea relaling to a provision is
presanted in the Statement of Profit ang Loss nel of any reimbursermcnt,

If the effecl of the time valus af meney ig matenal, provisions are discounted using a currem pre-tax rate
that reflects, when gppropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, tha increase in
lhe provision due to the passane of ime ie recognized as a finance cost,

3.13 Employee benefits
(1) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-manetary benefite that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 moniths afler the and of the peried in which the employees render the relatad service are
recognized in rezpect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting pericd and are neasured at
the amounts expected 1o ba paid when the liabilities are setiled The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet [

(i) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick lsave and privilege leave to its employees

Privilege and sick leave obiigation is provided based on aciuarial valuation which takes inlo account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lzpse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on (he basic salary of the employoo
and for the portion that is expected to he avalled, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The liability for earned lsave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 manths. The remaining portion is classified as ron-current The
amaunts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

(iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
(@) defined benefit plans such as gratuily
iby defined contrinution plans such as provident furd.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or sssst recognized in the Ealance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity Jlans is
the pre=ent value of tha defined benefil obligation at the end of tha reporting pariod less he fair
value of plan assets, The defined benef obligation is calculated annually by independant actuaries
using the projectad unit credit mathed.

The present valuiz of the defined benafit abligation is determined by dizzalnting the estimated fulure
cash outflows by reference to market yieds at the end of tha reporting perind on governmeant bonds
that have lerms approximating to the terms of the related obiigalion.

The net intarast. cost is calculated oy applying the discount rate 1o the net balance of the defined
banefit obligation and the fair value of plan assels. This cast is included in employea benefit cxNpense
in the statement of profit and loss.

he end of each freparting  pericd
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Re-measurement aains and
assumplions are recognized
income. They are
balanca sheet.

in the period in whi

included in retained Earmings in the

Changes in the presen
curtailments are rgcogn

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provid
regulations, The Com
paid. The contribution
recognized as employes benetit exponse when
a3 &0 asset (o the extenl that 3 cash refund or a

ent fund contricution
pany has na further p

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients in
deposits with an criginal matu
charges in valus,

T

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash an
deposits, as defined above, net of cutstanding bank ove
the Company's cash managament,

rd

3.15 Derivatives

Derivativez are initially recognized at fair valye on the da
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of

31

o

Trade Payahles

Trade payables are obligations to pay for foods or servicas
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are clazsifis
ene year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the
nen-current liabiiitios.

Trade payables are recognized initiall
the effeclive intereat method
347 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any confirac
or equity instrument of ancther entit

Financial assets
Initial recognition and meas urement

All financial assets are ra
value through Statement of Profit and Los

lopsses arising from experience adjustm
ch they oceur, di

b value of the defined benefit obli
ized immediately in profit or loss as past servics cost.

5 to publicly sdministarad
ayment abligations an
S &re accounted for as defined contribution

lhey are due. Prepaid contrit
reduction in the future payme

te & derivative eontract is enterad in
each reporting period,

business if longer). If not,

y at fair value and subsequently measured at

tthal gives rise 1o a financial asset of ane entity and a finan

cognised initially at fair value, in the case of fin
s, net of directly attributable trg

|
enls and changes in actuarial

rectly in other comprehensive
Changes in Equity and in the

Statement of

gation resulting from plan amendmlients or

Frovident funds as per (peal
ce the contributions hava been
plans and the contributions ars
utions are recognizeg
nts s available,

the balarce shast comprize cash at banks and o hand and shor-term
ity of three months or less, which are eubject to an insignificant risk of

d cash equivalents consist of cash ang khort-tarm
rafis as they are considerad an jnteqrai part of

to and are

that have been acouired in the ordinary course
d as current liabilities if Payment is dus within
they are presented as

amortised cost using

1:|al liability

ancial essets not recurldﬁd at fair
nsaction cost to the acquisition of

the financial assel. Purchases or salas of
established by regulation or convention |
lrade date, i.e., the date that tha Compan

fi

riencial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
N the market place fregular way trades) are recognised on the
¥ COMmits lo purchase or sell the asset,

For purpuses of subsequent
at amortised cost

8t fair value through profil or loss (FYTPL)

at fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOGCH)

meazurement, financisl assets are classified in fellewing categories.
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Financial Assets ay amortised cost
Financial assetls ara Measured al the amortised cost if bath the following conditions Are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is o hold assets for collecting contractus!
cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the assel give fise on specified dates to cash flows that are suvlely payments of
principal and interest {3PPI) on the erincipal amaodunt cutstanding.

This categery is the maost relevant io the Company. Al the Loans and gther receivables under financial
assetls (excapt Investments} arg nan-derivative finenclal assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not queted in an active marker, f

After initial measurament such financial assets are Eubsequently measured at amariised :szt_l using the

Effective Interest Rale (EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculatad by taking into account sny discount ar

premium on acquisition and foes or costs that are en integral part of the EIR. The EIR amcftization is

included in finance incoma in the Staternent of Profit and Loss, The losses arising trom impar'rmanf are
and

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally spplies (o loans ather
receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Valus through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Com prehensive Income

Al investments in stopa of Ind AS 102 are measured at falr value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for lrading, are classificd as at FVTPL The Cumpany makes such election on an
ingtrument by instrumsnt basis, The classification is made on initial recagrition and 15 Irrevocabloe

I the Company deades ig classify an nstrument as at FVTOCL, then all fair valye changes on the
instrurment, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Othar Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income {QCI) to the Statemant of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. Howaver, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

|

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, whera applicable, a part of a financial azset or part of the Company's similar financial
gssets) is primarily derecognized {i.2. remecved from the Company's balance sheet) when; [

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or |

The Cempany has transferred jts nights o recaive cash flows from the assel or has assumed an obligation
lo pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, or (b} the Company has neither trantferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
8522, but has transferred control of the asset

When thea Company has transferred its rights to receve cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangemant. it evaluates i and fo what extent it has retainog the risks and rewards of
ownership, YWhen it has naither transferred nor relained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues 1o recogniza the wransfarred assel to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement, |n that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability, The transferred asset and the assccialed liability are measured on a bags that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retaired,
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Impairment of financial assets |

The Company assesses on a ferward \ooking basis the e
carmed st amortised cost ang FWOC! The Impairment met
been a significant increase in credit riskl

npected cradit lasses associated with' its assels
hedalogy applied depends on whethet thera has

The Company has three types of financial aszats subject to Ind AS 109's expectad credit loss mode):
*  loans recelvables Measured at amortised post

=  Retentions receivable, grant receivable from MHAI

*  Loans given io emplayces

The impairment methodology for each clazs of financial assets stated ahoye js as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortisad cosl. Loans receivables gt amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considerad 1o be low risk, ang thus the impairment provision |s determined as 12 months
expected credil lossas,

Loans given 1o employess: For loans given ta employees outstanding a3 on the reporing dales, the hag
delermined reliably that 8s=e8&ing the probability of defayll at the initizl recogrifion of each and overy Inan
or receivable would result in undue cosl and efforl. As permitted By Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, untll the (oan is der cognized.

Using the impaiiment methodology the Cempany has assessed thal no loan loss allowance néeds Lo ba
recorded in the books of accounts

Expected credit loss {'ECL") Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recegnized as inccme/ expense in the Staternent of Profit and Loss (PEL). This amount is reflected under
the head 'other expenseas’ in lhe PEL The balance sheat presentation for various finaneial instruments is
described below:

Financial assets measured as at amorized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL =
presented as an allowance, e Bs an integral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the nel carrying amount. Until the agset meets wrile-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross camying amount.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and meas ureiment

Financial liabllities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liakilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair valye.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and othar payables. ioans and borrowings inclt.rdmg bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measuremant

The measurernent &f financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below:
Loans and borrowings

Thiz is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, inferest-bearing lnans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates, The impact of restatement of effective inlerast rate, year an year due to
reset of intersst rate, is not material, Gaine and lvsses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
whan the liabilities ara derecognized as well Bs through the transaction cost amarlization procoss.

Retention money payable

Thiz is the calegory most relevant to the Company. Retenlion Moneys are measured at Fair value inrl!a_lh_.-.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortsed cost using the EIR (Effective interest rete) method. Gaing
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilties are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amertization process,
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3.19

De-recognition

madification is treated as the de-recognition of the original lighility and the recognition of a new liabiity
The difference in the respeclive carrying amounts s recognized in the Statement nf Profit and Ldss

Financial assets and financial liabilties are offsat and the nel amount is reported in the balance shaet if
there is a currently: enforceable legal right to offset the recogrized smounts and there is an intention 1o
sattle on s net basis, to realize the assels and saffle the lisbilitiog simu!tanem:sly.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measursment

The Company uses derivative financial instruments —principal only swaps lo hedge its foreign currency
risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized g fair value on the date on which a
derivalive contract is entarad into and are subsequently re-measurad at fair value. Derfvativesz are carmed
&z financial assets whan the fair value is positive and as financial libilities when the fair value is| negative,

Any gains or lossas arising fram changes in tha fair velue of derivatives ara taken directly 1o Statement of
Profit and Loss, [

Segment information |

|
The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Project” which in the context of Ind AS 108 1Qperating
Segmeant" |5 considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within | India and
hence, no separate geographical segment disclosure |s considered necessary. [

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgemenis ara continually evaluated and ars basad on historica) experience and other
facters, including expectations of future evants that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

T

will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets ang liabilities are disclosed
bialow,

(i} Applicability of service concession arrangement dccounting to toll rpads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service concession arranngants' is
applicable 1o the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
COncession arrangements. The Company hzs enterad intg concession arrangement with MNHAJ a8 per which
the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer {DBFOT) basis the ol
reads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangemeant, the Company has to transier the
infrastruciure i e toll roads constructad to Mational Highway Autharifiss of India (NHAI,

Accordingly the Company has recognized iha intangible assets recognized as per |he actounting policy
mentioned in Note ng 2.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets undar SEIViCe concessionairs arrangament’,

{ii} Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating lo carried forward tax lusses to the extant therg
are sufficient taxahle temparary differencas rslating to the same taxation authority against which the unused
lex Insses can ba utilized, However, the utilization of tax insses alan depends on the ability of the Company
lo safisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future taxable
profilts and has therefora recognized deferrec tax assets in relation to lax losses
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(iil)Amortization of concesslon intangible assots

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected foll
revenue which reflects the Pattern in which the mssets econamic benefits are consumed. The projected total
tall revenue is bazed on the independent traffic volume Projections; Amortizatian is revised in case of any
material change jn the expected patlsrn of economic benefits,

{iv} Impairment of concession intangible agsats |

The Company tests intangible assets and cash qenerating units hgva sullered any impgirment, in
accerdance with the accounting poiicy statod in note: 3.11. The fecoverable amount of mach cash
generating unit has been determinad based on the greater of value-in-use and fair vajua less costs to gl
calculalions. Thesa calculetions reguire the use of assumplions regarding traffic flows, discount rates,
growth rates and olher factors affeciing cperating activities of the cash generating units, |

¥} Falr valuation of derivatives and other financial Instruments

The fair value of finar
techniques The Company uses itg ludarments ta select a variely of melhods ang makes assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balancs sheel dafe

{vi} Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expendilura)

The Company records (he resutfacing obligation for ite Present obligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the (ol roads af every five years during the concessinn pericd. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The calculations
to discount these amounts to thair Fresent valug are based on the esfimated timing of expenditura oeourring
on the roads, '

The discount rate used (g value the resurfacing provision at jts present value is determingd through
reference to the nature of Provision and risk associated with tha expenditure, |
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Note 4 - Intangible assets T Millions
: |
Particulars Toll Collection rights

I
Net carrying amount as at April 01, 2015 7,032.22
. |
Year ended March 2016 |
Opening gross Carrying amount 7.077.29
Additions -
Disposals e2.12
Closing gross carrying amecunt 6,985 17 |
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 45.07
amortisation charge for the year 45.15
Disposals
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 90.22
|
Net carrying amount 6,894.95
I
Year ended March 2017
Opening gross carrying amount E.BAE.W
Additions -
Dizposals 12.86
Cfusfn_g_grnss' carrying amount 687220
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 90.22
amortisation charge for the year 59 44
Disposals =
Closing accumulated amortisation and im airment 149.65
ulosing P :
Net carrying amount 6,822.55
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Note 5 - Financial Assots - Current

T Millions
Particod As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Note 5 (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Ealances with hanks
- In current accounts 446 4. 36 248
Cash on hand 1.75 2.02 1.79
6.21 6.28 1M.27
Mote § (b) - Other financial assets - current I
Security deposits 0.27 0.27 057
Hatention money receivable from NHAI 1.85 1.65 1.65
Others 5.99 5.3? 4722
Claims receivable from NHA 7.44 -
15.34 ?.2‘3 6,44
i i
Mote 8 - Other non-current assets
Capital Advance 30.28 30.28 30.38
30.328 30.38 30.38
Note 7 - Other Current assets
Advance to vendars 0.42 82 00 0.75
Advance to employees 0.03 0.80 111
Prepaid Expenses 1.18 0.59 0.e2
Duties and taxes receivahle 5.92 3.43 19.80
7.56 BB.82 22.28
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Particulars

Hote B - Share Capital and Cther aquity

Note Ba - Authorised Share Capital

At thi: beginning of the year

Add | Incrense during It vear

A1 the end of the !;I'E-':r

Mota Bh - Is3ued, subseribed and paid-up pquity

share capilal
A the Beginning of the year

At Increase dudng the yrar
At the &nci of the year

Mote Bc - Terms and rights altached to equity shares

Nos of Shares

1,680,060, 000
of 710 each

127,55 640
of T10 gach

The Company has orily 0 class of Shares refermed to as Equity Shaies having a Par Value af As. 105

Mote &d - Reconclilation of nog of Sharps
Mes af Ehares at the beginning of the year
Add Mos of Shares izsusd during the yaar
MNaoe af Sharss at e and &f the yoar

Note 8a - Shares hala by the Sponsor
Company ar thelr subsidiaries/associates

Reliance Infrastructure Lirnitaa
(Immadiate and Ulimate Helding Compary)

MNote Bf - Details of Shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the Project Spy

Reliance infrastructure Limited
Nos of Shares
o of halding

Space Trade Enlerprises Private Limited
MNos of Shares
% of holding

Trustee : Space Trade Enterprises Private Limited| Trust: Refiance Tall Road Trust)

Mos of Shares
% of holding

Spice Commerce and Trade Private Limited
MNod of Sharss
% af halding

Shkyline Giobal Trade Private Limitea
Nos of Shares
% of holding

The Eponsor has pleciged 38 28 2a5 Equity Shares for availing variaus term loans.

Particulars

Mete 98 - Sub-crdinated debt {in nature of ety

At the: baginning of the vear
Increaes ¢ (decraase) timing the year
Al the end of tha year

Terme and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts inluscd by Sponsor alongwith ite Subsldiaries ;
i} SGubordinated dekt is he part of Sponsoes Equity fram the promaoters of e company for the project, which e tmzecured and interest free as per Common

Loan Agracment with the lereinrs;

iy Mo repaymentirodemption/inter est senvicing allewed durlrg the moratorium pancd of the kang

As al 5
March 31, 2047

|
As at!
March 31, 2016

¥ Millicns
As at
April 1, 2015

180,00

160 00
—_—

180.00

T6UDD_

TED O

160,00

E— -_——
127 58 12558 12748
s 13758 T 127 56
I
1,27,55 650 1,27]55,650 1,27 55,050
|
i 127,55 6on 1_2?{'55,1:50 1,27 55650
|
1,27,58,550 E?.|5D.2ET B2,50,257
127,56 650 62 50,267 82 50 267
100% 48% $5%
2082 2oa 20,52, 658
185 # 169,
- 266113 256,113
o # 2%
zcnla«z.z?s 20,84,273
16% # 16%
20082 008 20 67 gag
168% # 16%
| 2 Milllors
As at AE al As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2016
822 T0 1,357 70 120270
150 0a 145,00 158 00
— 171270 1,522 70 137770

e project lean.
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Nature and purpose of securities premium

Securitizs premium reserve is used to record the premium ort issue of shares. The reserve is Ut

with the provisions of the act,

T Millions
o As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
I
" Note 8b - Retained Eamings
At the beginning of the year (1.82) 103.60
Net Profit for the yesr (88.38) (108, )
leims of other comprehensive incomes recognisod
directly in retained earnings
- Remeoasuremens of post-employements [(0.54) (0.18)
obligations (net of tax)
Lividends paid during the ViRl - 2
Al the and of the year [81.52) (162) 103.60
Note 9c - Securlties Premium Account |
Al the beginning of the year 1,337.14 1~3:17|_14
Fremium on shares issued during the year - E
Altha end of the year 1,337.14 1,337 14 1,337.14

lised in accordance
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) ¥ Millionz
- Az at Az at Ag al
Fiticulans March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 April 1, 2015
Mete 10 (a) - Borrowings - Mon currant |
Sugured | -
Term loans |
From banks |
Rupee tarm loan 2,292 68 2,51‘.4:1 2,780,354
Frem financial Institutions
Rupoe term toan 582.10 SH—-HEJ 71810
T - o ]
otal 2,8B84.78 _3@_5_5_2_ 3,458 44

1) Rupeo Term Loan from Banks & Financlal Institutions -

(1] afirst ranking puiri passy marlgeguichange over all the Barowar's mmmovedble and movable prope ies, Beth prescol and future, axcep! {he Projoct

{ie) & first ranking oo receivabies, bogk debis, cash and cash equivalenls ingluding any other bank Ancaunts and other sssets, presant and Tutyre,

vy a first ranking on governimant approvals, insurance poficies, uneallad capital, praject documents Guaraniess, leter of credit, perormance
waranties, mdemnities, and securites given lo tha Company

(W} & first ranking par passy charge aver f asgignment of tha right, uthe, interests, benefits, claims and detrands of he Borrower in, o and under any
letter af credit, guarantees {uxcept the guarantess ssued n Tayvour of NHAR including contractar Quarantcos and liguidsted damages and perflormance

band provided by any party to the Project Dacumenls. |

(v) Repayment Terms - The repayment of ian has started ram 31 Dec 2011 in 48 Quarterly instaliments and wil be paid Wl Btk Septamber 2023, Tho
interest will be paid manihly a& per the applicable Inlorest Fatas

vi} The applicable interest ate for rupee term loan varies from 10.80% to 11.50% p.a [

Wote 10 (B - Borrowings - Currant |

Unsecurgd |
(unsecured, repayable on demand andg inlrest frea)
Loan from related parties _75.00 ¥5.00 -
76.00 75.00 -
Mote 11 - Trade Payables
Trade Payables 1B4.88 182,06 281,83
184,85 1B2.96 261,93

|a} Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Digciosure of payable to vendors as definad under the "Micro, Small and Medium Erterprise Develapment Azl 2008" i= based an the information

available with the Company regarding the status of registation of such vendors under iha s2id At as par the infimation receivad fram them on
requests made by the company. There are no overdus pincipal amountsinterest Payable amounls for delayed payments to such verdors at the
Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in paymant maks b suek suppliers during the year or for any varlier years and accordingly there is no interest
paid or gutstancing interest in this regard In respect of paymants made during the yesr or Brought forward fram previous y«éarlla
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t Millicns
As at As at As al
Ranfalsrs March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 April 1, 2015
Note 12 {a} - Other financial liabilities - curront
Current Maturities af long term deht 3510 26340 17560
Emplayes benfits payabls 240 240 011
Retantion migney payabde 188 37 - i -
Tetal 53887 265.70 175.71
Mote 12 (b - Other tinanclal liabilitios - Mon . current
Non - Curront |
Retentlon manay pavable - 183.01| 1417 10
Total - 163.01 141.10
I
Mete 13 fa) - Provisions - Currant [
Currgnt |
Provigion for empioyes benefits |
- Gratuity - -
- Leave encashment 0.08 0 n?l 0os
[Hhaarg
Rusurtacing cupenses £ i L
0.08 .07 0.05
Mote 13 (b} - Provisicns - Mon - Current
Frovision fer employee Benofits
- Graluity .10 0o oo
- Leave encashment 2.08 1.85 1,35
Othars
- Resurfacing axpanses 235.80 195.35 80.70
23816 197.21 52.05
Movament in provislan during the financial year % sef oul ag betow
Resurlacing provisions
Al the Baginning of the year 155,35 90_?[] £.23
Charged / {credited) ta profit or logs
additicnal Provision recagnised 3307 5@.?4_ B3z
unisad amauni reversed - =l | -
urwinding of discount 7.28 10. 0.75
Armound ulilised during the yaar - - -
At the and of the year 235,80 18538 8070

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates
As per the =ervice concessien arangemant with NHAL the “ampany is akligated 1o carry aul rasurtacing of the roads under concessian The company

eslimates the lkely provision required towsrds resurtacing and accrues the cosls on a siraight line basis cver the Perod &t the end of the which
resurtacing would be required. in tha Statement of Profit and Loas |n accordance with Ing A5 37 Pravisians, Contingent Liakdities and Contingent
Anzate

Mote 14 - Other current liabilitios

Dulies and taxes payabls : 1.96 4,79 0.58
1.96 4.76 0.56
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Notes to Financial Statements ¥ Millions
|
=1 : ——
Year ended Year ended
Particul i
e March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Note 15 - Revenue

Operating income
- Income from toll eollections
Compensation towards Tall Suspensicn

Note 16 - Other incoma

Dividend Income on current investment
Interest income

- On fixed deposits

- Others

Insurance claim received
Miscellansous income

Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expensés

Note 18 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and cther funds
Gratuity

Leave encashment

Staff welfare SXpeEnses

Note 19 - Finance Costs

Interest on lean

Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Unwinding of discount on retention money

Note 20 - Other expenses

Rent

Rales & taxes

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration
Travelling and Conveyance
Other miscellaneous EXPENSas

481.57 506.41
29 50
511 08 506.41
0.51 0.86
0.37 .
0.05 0.10
5.85 0.34
- | 0.18
679 | 1.46
|
2372 26.42
133.23 108.36
3.94 368
1.10 0.68
8.90 10.86
170.90 149 97
10.67 11.67
0.50 0.56
0.31 0.23
0.46 0.57
0.23 0.22
1217 13.28
|
371.42 403 .64
7.38 10.88
4.77 7.05
20.02 17.80
403.60 429 38
0.20 0.24
0.20 0.14
2.84 e
7.28 9.37
0.58 0.42
0.40 | 0.34
1.73 | 1.28
13.23 14.90
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Mote 21 - Fair value measurements
Fimancial Instruments by categary
Signficance of financlal instruments

I Millions
= |
Particul As at As at ' As at
e March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Financlal assols
At amartised Cost
Security Depasits 0.27 0.27 [P
Insurance Claim racaivablag 5.89 5.3 4 ¥2
Retention Maney receivable from NHAI 164 1.G65 1.65
Cush and Cash oguivalent f.21 38 11.27
Claims recoivable fram NHAI Todd -
Tetal financial assets 21.56 13.67 17.70
Financlal liahilities
At amortised Gost
Floating Rats Borowings 3.310.98 3.573.5; JGT4 D4
Trade Payablas 194.04 142,49 281 93
Retenlion money payabie 186.37 163.0 141.10
Employes Danefils Payable 2.40 23 011
Total financial llabilities __3694.63 o2z 4087.18

S
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Mute 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair value hierarchy - Recurring fair value measuremonis ¥ Millions
— T Asat E As at _ As al
AR March 31, 2017 Mareh 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Ean:inl asscls
At Fair value through profit & loss |
Level 1 |

Mutual fund Investments - — =
lotal financial assats - = =

Financial llabilities |

Tetal financial lahilities - I = E

e e  —— — - —— - L — —
(k) Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at
amartised cost for which fair values are disclosed
Financial asscts
Lovol 3
Grant receivable fram nHA = ) = &
Total linancial assets - - -
Financial liabilities
Level 3
Floaling Rale Borrowings 3310.98 857302 3674.04
Relention money payable 186.37 | 163.01 141.10
Total financial liabilitios 3497.35 3736.93 3815.14

Recognised fair value measurements [

Level 1: Levei 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumeants measured using quoted prices. This Incluges mutual funds thal have gualed price. The muiual
funds are valued using the closing Mav, |

Level 2: The fair value of financigl instruments that are not traded in an aciive market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation technigues which maximise the use of obsenvable market dala and rely as liftle as Possible on entity-specific estimates. If a)l significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in leval 2.

Level 3: I one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable marke! dats, the instrument |s included in level 3. This is the casa for
borowings, debentures, Rerention monay payable and hedging derivativa included in level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific yveluation techniguss used fo value financial instruments Include:

* the use of quoted market Prices or dealer quaoles far similar instruments

* the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward
axchange rates al the balance sheet date

» the: fair value of the remaining financial instrumeants is determined using discounted cash flew analysls,
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lc} Fair value of financial assots and liabilities measurad at amortised cost T Millions
} As at As al = Asg at
FParticul
i March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Financial assets I
|
Carrying value of financial assots at amortised cost
Granl receivabie from NHAI = = | -
Total Financial assets at amortised cast Z _— RN =
Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Grant receivalie from MHAI
Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost = SRS -
Financlal liabilities
Carrying value of financial liabllities at amortizsed cost
lloating rale borrowigns 3310.88 3,671 a2 367404
Retention monay 188,37 THI0] 14140
49735 T & 3 = 3,875,
Fair value of financial liabilitles ca rried at amorised cost
Flualing rate borrawigns 3,310.88 5.573.92 2674 04
Retantian money 186 37 163.01 13110
3487.35 3736.83 e JB15.14

The: carrying value amounts of fixeg duposits, interest accrued on depoists, ratention money recoiviable, Insurance claim receivable, cash and
cash aquivalents, trade payables. intereet accrued, employes benefils payable and craclitors for capital expenditura approximate their fair vlug
due to their short term natire.

For financial assets end liahilities that are measured at fair value, the carying amounts are eqgual 1o the fair valyas, |
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Mot 23- Concession arrangemaonts - Main features EMillions
Mama of entity Description of the Signilicant tarms of the arra noemant Intangible Assats Financial Asset
arrangemont Gross book Met boak value
walue
1K Tall Road Private Limited Financing, design, buikding and | Foriod of concassmm 2008 - 2038 March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2017 |
operation ef 61 kilemotre long | Kemunetation Toll 6,977 20 H,822 85

six lang tofl road between Trichi
and Karur on Matona| Highwsry
6T

Investment grant from concession grantar
Yes

Infrastructure retum at the end of
concession periog @ Yas

Invastmizt and renswal obligations : Nd
Re-pricing dates : Yaarly

Basis upor which re pricing or re-
megatialion 18 detenmined @ Infiation
Freinium payable 1o grantor : Nil

March 31, 2016
B,970.81

April 01, 2018
T.077.28

March 31, 2016

5,866,311

April 01, 2015

|T.032 22

March 31, 2016

April 01, 2015
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Note 24 - Financial risk management

The company activities exposes it to market rigk,

liquidity risk and credit risk_

This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the

risk,

Risk

Credit nsk

Market risk — interest rate

Liquidity risk

The company's risk management Is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team
policies approved by board of directors. The Management of the Company provides written pri
management, as well as policies COovering

Exposure arising
from

Ciash and cash
ecuivalents, trade
receivables, financial
dssets measured at
amaortised cost,

Long-term borrowings
al variabie

Rates
Borrowings and other
liabilities

specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credit

Measurement

Aging analysis Credit
ratings

Sensitivity analysis |

Rolling cash flow I

foracasts f

financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:

The company requires for implementation (construction, operation and
bitumen, steel and other construction materi
contractor and O&M Contractor so as tom

analysis is not required.
Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with

financials, the company earn toll income which is linked tc WP

a) Interest rate risk exposure

als. For which, the compan
anage our exposure to price increases in raw materials,

!

Management

Diversification of
bank deposits,
credit imits and
letters of credit

Actively Managed

Availability of
committed credil
lines and
borrowing facilities

{group treasury) under
nciples for overall risk

risk, use of derivative

maintenance) of the projects, such as cement,
y entered into fixed price contract with the EPC
ence, the sensitivity

resels defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk an

thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

+ Millions
i As at As at As at
Et e March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Variable Rate Borrowings 3,235.98 348892 3.674.04
Fixed Rate Borrowings E -
Total 3,235.98 3,498.92 3,674.04
b) Sensitivity analysis _
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates
As at As at As at
Impact on profit/loss after tax March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Interesl rates (increase) by 1 basis points (25.58) (27.64) (29.02)
Interest rates decrease by 1 basis paints 2556 27 64

L.

29.02
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Liguidity risk

ncluded in the analysis it their
disclosed in the table are tha con

confractual maturities are essential for a
tractual undiscounted cash flows

T Millions

pany's non-derivative financial iabilities and net-settled derivative financial IiabilFies o relevant maturity
maturity date. Derivative financial liabilities are
n understanding of the timing of the dash flows, The amounts

As at March 31, 2017 Lessthan3  Between3  Between 1  Betweon 2 Over 6 years Total
months months and 1 year and 2 years and 5
year years years
Non-derivatives
Horrowings 87 80 338 40 439.00 1,799.20 647 .40 331250
Trade and other payablas 48.72 146.16 184 89
Oither financial labilitios 183 .61 2.40 - - 196.01
Total non-derivatives 33013 486,96 439.00 1,799.90 547.40 3, 70340
As at March 31, 2018 Lessthan3 Between 3 Batween 1 Between 2 Over 5 years Total
months monthsand 1 year and 2 years and &
year years _ vyears |
MNon-derivatives '
Borrowings 65.85 272 55 35120 1,580.40 |1 205,90 3,575.90
Trade and other payabies 4574 137.22 - - - 182 86
Other financial liabilties - 2.30 180.28 - [ - 163.57
Total non-derivatives 111.59 412.07 541.48 1,580.40 1,305.90 3,851.44
! —
As at April 1, 2015 Lessthan3 Between 3 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years Total
months months and1  yearand2 yearsand s
year yoars years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 43.80 131.70 263.40 127310 1,964 40 3.676.50
Trade and other payables 7045 211.45 - - - 281,83
Other financial liabilities - 0.11 - 18434 - 184 45
Total non-derivatives 114.38 343.26 263.40 1.457.44 1,964.40 4,142 .88
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TK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 25 - Capital risk management

The company's objectives when managing capital are to

sateguard thair ability to continue as a geing concern, so that the

. returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakehalders, and
s Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company capital management,
equity reserves attributable 1o the equity hoiders of the p
the sharsholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of chan

capilal includes izsued equity capital,

¥ can continue to provide

ghare premium; sub-debts and all other
arent. The prirmary objoctive of the company capital manageman! is to maximize

ges in economic conditions and the requiremants af

the financial cevenants. To maintain ar adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholdars,

return capital to shareholders or issug interast free sub-ordinate debt. The company monitors capital using a gearing ralio, which is net

debt divided by total capital plus net debl. The company policy is to keap optimum gearin

interest bearing loans and borrewings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

g ralio, The company includes wilhin net debi

In arder lo achieve this overal| objective, the company capital management, amongst clher things, aims to ensure that it meets financial

tovenantis attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital struclure reguiremeants. Np changes were made in

the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for
Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capl

Met debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by
Total ‘equity’
{as shown in
the balance
sheat),

I'he company’s strategy is to maintain a debt to equity rafic within 1.07 to 1.24 The gearing

and April 01,2015 were as follows:

year ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and Lpn’! 1.2015,
ital on the basis of the following gearing ratio: [

ratios at March 31, 2017, Mareh 31, 2016

* Millions
As at As at As at
FAibsulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Met debt (a) 3,304.77 3,567 .54 | 3.662,77
Equity (b) 3,085.88 2,085 .78 2,946.00
Net debt to equity ratio ia)/ib) 1.07 1.19 1.24
- As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Met debt (a) 3,304.77 3,567.54 3,662.77
Equity (b) 3,085.88 2 985 78 2,846.00
Nebt debt plus Equity (¢ = a+h) 8,290 85 6,553.32 f.B0A 77
(Gearing ratio (a)/ ¢ 0.52 0.54 0:&a5
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TK Toll Road Private Limited
Netes to Financial Statements

Note : 26 Related Party Transaction

As per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as prescribed under tha Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, the related parties and
transactions are disclozsed bolow -

{i) Sponsor Company
Heliance Infrastructure Limited

(ii} Key Management Parsonnel
Kaushik Pal - Director (w.e.f. Octabor 1,2015)
Madan Bivani - Direclor (w.ef March 31, 2015) |
Sudhit B Heshing - Diractor [till February 28, 2014
MrAmitabh Jha - Director (w.e f Augusl 20, 2015) |
Yogesh Jan -Chief Financial Officer (wef February 7, 2017)
Pramad S5 Singh -Manager (w.e.f. February 7, 201 7) |

{lliy Person having singificant influence on the Sponsor Company
Shri Anil .D. Ambani
Details of transactions and closing balance 1 Millions

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015

Transactions during the year ;

Toll operation and maintainence expenses (including project
execution support services)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 7.28 802

Reimbursement of expenditure paid by
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 0.25 023

Sub-debts received (in nature of equity) (
Rellance Infrastructure Limitad 180.00 145.00

Inter-corporate deposit received during the year
Reliarce Infrastructure Limited - 73.00

Balances at the year end

Inter-corporate deposit

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 75.00 7500

Other current liabilities

Reliance Infrastructure Limiteq 16887 1020 280
Sub-debts (in natura of equity)

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 1,.712.70 1.522.70 1,377.70
Equity share capital (excluding premium) )
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 127 56 82 50 62,50
Spice commerce and trade private limited (SCTPL) - 20.84 20184
Space Trade enlerprises private limited {STEPL) 20 B) 2083
Skyline glahal trade privale limited (SGTPL) - 20,83 20.83

Trustee : Space Trade Enterprise private limited .
i Trust; Reliance Tall Road 1 rust) (RT Trust) - 2.05 2.55
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TE Toll Road Private Limited
MNetas to Financial Htatements

Mote 2F: Income and deferred laxns
27ja) Income tax expensa

March 31, 2077 _|

__¥ Millions
[ March 31 2016 |

8} incone tax expense

Currur

Caiment tas an profits for e yuar
ladpislmanta far curent bk af prior penods

Tatal eierent tax vaponss

Ly TRTR
I:unmmn.l:--crwuu;-.ﬂ melBired 1 assaln
acreasdincransn in detered lax lanlities

Tabal deforrnd tax sxpu nsed{bomefit)

Incame tax oxpwime

Inooaw Lax expense is albributable ta:

Prufit from contruig oporesinre
Prafit from 4 Jad aperalivn

[118.57) 12811

! 64,15 FR.BE
(5242 148 0%

=7 {52.43) [47.85)
162.43) (40 85)

214h) Rocanicifiation uf Las capanse apg Ui

ting protil llipdind By India's lax ratn::

; [ March3v. 3017 | haarcn 3t 3uis ]
Feedit fram curtlining npecatons befarn innoene dax snenon (14251} (1R%.07)
Frahit frum disesstrung operation bnfacs INCEFM 3K nepards - -
|TAx at the bndian tax rato of 34.508%, [#5.28]] (B3E7
Fan wifisar nf spncunts which am nat daaucibh [fnanbin) in calculating akabie neame;
Prsalinmance we 1di
SEC3 amuun| rrarr.rliamwufamlmgmtnam-pmui:iun of Gratuly & |eave anchasemant BT 0,14
Any wiher ewsenpt ncome-Mutual Fung Dividand (018} 0,30
Espunsns rot delbilod in statamern of PEL and alovasasis for ingams [1,55) (0. 78}
SEC-3F-Any alher ameunt rat allgwabls unmer Sacbon 37-Beewce Tax Credil - Priar Yoar - 1684
SEC-37-Amrmunt of any Roiily of & confingard natuis-Praviskn . 1.55
Effect on acoount of fransilion (148 of retaned aanmns - (9.62) e
Sl bomparany difarences : Boo || _1.53
Ineme tax wipnnne charged to sLalement of Profis anid Laes [ sz [ [ELRE
7] - Dulerred Law [Fability) | Assei
The kalance comprises iemporary diffarencos attributablo 1o T Mlilions
Aw at Az at As at
@
e March 31, 2017 _March 31,2016 _ Apuil 1, 2045
Litusad 1ax kisses carrod fonward 29 83 22417 13329
Intangible saseis
| ot ealiectian rights (274.57) 1203.33) (117,18
Other itoms
Borrawings ({0.53) [0.68) (0,853
Ratentian Money Payabis 78,10 &1.40 15.79
Retirerment benefit abligation D78 [+1.7 ] 0.47
Dthar liems - . 0.78
_— f ;
Mot daferrod lay {kabifty)\assel 134.6 82,19 12 34

27 (d] -Movement in deferrod tax liability | naset

Intangibie sssets

Intangible assets

: - ol collection under MHAI Premium Oher items Total

Parficulars rights development
A8 &t April 01, 2018 (11715 = 16 20 32 534
Chargedseredited) during the wear

o prodil or lngs 85 16y = - 45 N8 1876

lex mlher comprehansive inmome - - - [+ (4] 0.0
Az at March 31, 2045 Ena.iaT T = £1.35 8718
As at April 01, 2018 (202 33 - - B1.36 H. 14
Chargedicrediteaf during tha yaar M

o peofit or loss 7124} - . 1?_?! .JJ ?

o ather oo chicnsive Incame 0% L._.:Zl
A5 At March 31, 2047 12}'-‘«.5}' - e 79,36 134 h |
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TK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 28 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

[ Note | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1. 2015 4
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents Sa 821 6.38 11,27
Other Financial Assets Sh 15.34 7.29 .44
Non-financial assets
First chaige
Other Current Assels 7 7.56 85.82 £2.28
Total eurrent assets pledged as security 2912 100.49 39.98
Non-current
Firs! charge
Intangible Assat 4 6,822 55 B,884 05 7.032.22
Other non current assets (5] 30.38 30.38 30.38
Total non-current assets pledged as security 6,852 93 6,925.33 7.062.61
Total assets pledged as security 6,882.05 7,025.83 7,102.59
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TE Toll Road Private Limitsd .
Notes to Financial Statoments

Mote 38 -FIRET TIME AGOPTION OF IND A%

Tra Camgeny has praparad thess Financiel Sisternents which il with Ind AR applicibie far ha periads anding March 39, 2017

The aduption of Ind AS has bean A UL IR accordanoa Wit Ing A5 101, First-ime Adepion of indisn Ansounting Starderds
I gropanng these ind AS Financil Staternents, the Ciompany has

of the aesets and liabltes n iha Finarcisl Sratomers g a8 tha
This node explans |ha sdlastmants mana by he Cormpany in restaling its Preuvicys GAAR Flnanoa Slstamams, including the Dalans Ehret as at Agrd 01, 2015, l
L Eummllmshmmlrnspeﬁvjlpphnlfnn |

Ind AS 101 alkows frt-Hme Adaulars conan exerpdons frem reliospective epphcation of reran requInment under Ind AS Tha Coerg
applicabon of Ind &5 |

Amartization ul intangiole as5uls arizing rom servine eoqcossiun AITARpemanis

Batfii wilh the compmrativg periad dala as arand fer YNar bndan Mamh 11

5 Adisied b

accordance wilk the acoourdng sandads nefisd widar Companiums thecounling Stendarg) Ruios 2008 135 arendad) ang cdher rekuant

il comam oxompSong and REEEPHANE 1 soonratce wilh Ind AS 104, as aEplEned below The resuling diffemmce betwaen tha CHITANG vakmas

TBnsiten dalo imdar ing A% ong Frevanus GAAP haue oean meogRisad diracty in aguily (rataned uarnmgs'nr Aanather agpopriate caagery uf equity)

|
iy s elecled tn Apaiy & fulkuwing eptianal sssniplizns fram ratrgpuctive

The Cumpany has ugad uADTRn under Ind A5 107 and s cantinue to adupl tha Btauibing poiley of Frevious GALP far amnuitization for inlangisle assels arrg Pn:|-11| BEMVILE Cununssian amarguinna rlgtTg

0 wonression bl (uads In8rgi5le akseds rmssanized i ha Einanda Hlalmnnta
R Excoolions from retrespuectiue Application

IThe Sompery nag appliod e fellawing eeeeptions from full ratrnapecive aoplcaiion of nd AR as mMBAdatonly noguired under i A8 109

lal Extimates . 1

Ui assegsrment of e estimates mado undar e Frisious GAAR nancisl smirments, tho Coamperty has concladad That e is
evinience hal dusn estabas wen in BT, Howevar, nssmatas, (fal were reegnngd ur e Inal A% eut nol recpard unger Piewinug
Londfons owsing as at thal daie

ibh Classitication and messursment of finnncial aesels

M RBCOEERY b revise tho elines under ind A3, s
GAAF, are made by the Cunpany Tar tha rakuri mpanng dalos, refieeting

there is g ailyiscsthen

ITe classficatan of francal assels t ba meEnasUred al amorlised cosl or fair value s glfar COMEEREnsive N1Lorne |5 mace on iha basis of the fiacis Brd circumsiances that sxisted o @#ie dale of fransnon

luIno g5,

Transition ta Ind A5 - Reconcillations

' Efictaf g AS adoplion on the Dalarea Sheet as gl March 31 2015 and Apri 1, M5

Il Efactoflind &5 edopton an the Statermant of Praft and Lass for ha yasr endad March 31, 2018 |
. IBeconalisbion of wal FQUily b= At March 31, 2018 ard Aol 1, 2016 |
W Reconglialion of 1otal comprehiensive irncama for the yeer endad Karsh 31, 2016

V. Matenal adjustmants ta tha ahalmwuhzmmm{nrmamramm March 31, 2018

Eftoct of Ing AS adoption on the Balance Sheet

& Millions
k : A5 at March 31, 201g A at April 1, 2016
i {End ot (a3t period presctad under previous GAAP) {Dats of tranzition)
Ind A5 I Ind AS
Hate Ganp d ag
abe Etﬂm__mi i) Ind A% Indian P _sdsimenty In
ABSETS
Mon-current asects
(k] Intanginle aasets ) ] amaro (1.118.75) 6 A94. 55 4,158 11,124 Dy 703z 22
... 1B Intangibin asenis under davolopmesnt ¥ i :
121 Pedarrad tax pesels el ] Hz1g 2719 - 3284 3134
{l Criner nien - curment asseds 034 - 3023 138 403k
Curront assots
ld) Finenzal Assets = i
ik Cash and cash squivaints 638 - 6,38 13.27 0.0 1127
(i} Cther financial peeey il Tz - T2 Tz {0 64) & ad
(b} Current Tax sesals (Hal) 200 % 200 2.02 10 aan
() {riner curant asscls B8 A2 a5A2 20.50 178 2228
Taotal Asuels B.147,57 [1.037.58) — 1002 goisdE EERTTY 713585
e —— e —— e
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Halire i .
(&) Frpaty ahara capital 127568 - 12T 56 27 56 12746
1B} lbar aquily 253018 390 Z.858 77 257754 .80 201845
LIBHILITIES
Man-currant Hahiidies
&) Fovancial | isbdnies
111 Buirowinggs LI 4 TEO 2D |1,924.88) A0ak 53 & 803 50 11.424.08) B9 44
i} Clher financial lisbides fwl 16028 (2737} L= | @617 14,07} AR 1]
1B} Pravieons i 1 6R 14236 18T H 13K WL EFHIE
Curront liabilitios
181 inanzal Lisbiiling . . s
M Bormowongs i) - 40 . -
[l Trads paysios TR - 1&2._9:.. €57 _:?‘?F. ’I‘-
AIE] Othar finarcial Fanlites = 26570 - 265, T 400,85 (26 18
(| Cerver evirrent sk d?L - 4..rt,= Il::-f 15 oy
() Provisikang ooy - 0.y 05
Tatal Equily and Liabilities B iaTET 1,037.58) __ Tiinaz I L I L = ¥ S o T T }
— L —— | — =i

“Tha precsarmaben ragquiramonts Under Pravious GAAR affers from and o the Previous GaAR Infarmalion nas been nagrouged for sase of recenchizmon wilh ind AS. The regrouped Pravious Gaap

infaernadiom 3 deread based an the Blcktan fnancial stalemars of tha Cormpany for the year ended 31at March, 2015
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TK Toll Road Private Limited
Motas to Financial Stataments

Note 29 -FIRST TIME ADORTION OF IND AS

March 31, 2018

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statemeant of profit and Joss for the year ended Note r
La

Particulars

Revanua from gperatlans
Other Income
Total income

Expenses
Tell Operatun snd Maintainence BXPANSES fiv)
Empioyee benefits exponse -

fiw), {v)

Fmance tosts & (vi}
Amartizalion expansea {ih
Other expensas

Total expenses

Profit / {lass) before tax

Tax expense
Deferred tax charged cradity (i)

Profit{Loss) far the year

Other Comprehensive Income
(i} tems that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Remeasuremenis of net defined
beanefit plans : Galns f {Loss}

(ii} Income tax relating to tems that will naot
be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined banafit plans [ii)
Other Comprehensive Income/{Lass) for the yoar

Total Comprehensive Income iLoss) for the year

T Millions

|
For the year ended March 31, 2018
test periad presented under previoys GAAF)

Indian GAAP* J_““’ AS Ind AS
adjusimonts
1
508.41 . 506,41
1.46 | 1.48
50787 507 BT
8520 t4. 70 140,97
13.54 (0.28) 13.26
A10L20 JH 18 A3 N
82 .31 (7 15) 45.1_5
14 90 - 14.40
546,23 116.43 BE2.66
[38.36) 1116.43) {154.79)
i (40.75) (40,75)
(38.38) [ (56.68) {105.04)
|

£ (0.28) {0.28)

L {010 (01

4 (01} [.14)
(38.36) {66.87) (10623
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TK Toll Road Private Limitad
Motes to Financial Stalements

Note 28 -FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND A5

.

Reconcillation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015:

: As at March
_Parhcular: Nota % i
Total equity (shareholders funds as per Indlan GAA P) 253015
Adjustments:

Hetrospective application of servica concesslonaine arrangaments i [158.58)
Impact of Financial assots recognised under concessionalme arrangemant {Met of (i}

Discounting) A44R 15
Capital Resarve recognised as financial assst li} {1,342 60)
Resurfacing provision recognised as por Ind AS 28 fincluding :

unwinding of discount on rezurfacing provislon) {iv) (195.35)
Sub-nrdinated dabt in nature of adqlity [wi) 1,522 70

Discounting ol Hetertlon money pavable fw) (34.94)
Barrowings fiif} {1.51)
Tax affacts un edjustments (defermad fax impact) {ii} 8z.18

Total adjustments 31904

Total equity {shareholder's funds as per ind AS) 2,858 22
='__L_=

T Millions

As at Apr-;l 01,
2015

2,577 54
{165.80)

44815
(1,347 K}

(80,71
137770
[17.1R)
(1.03)
a2 E4
T
C 2R1aaE

e
. Reconclliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016
2 ! Milllans
For the year
Particulars : Note  ended March
- . 31. 2018
Mat prafit or loss as per Provious GAMAF {Indian GAAF) (38.36]
Adjustmente:
Hetrospestive application of servics Concessionaire arrangements (i) 6.23
Resuracing provision recognised as per Ind AS 28 {including %
urmeinding of discount an resurfacing provigion) {iv) {104.65)
Discounting of Retention maney payabhe v} {17.80)
Borrowings (i) (0.49)
Tax effects on adjusimenis ideferred lax impact) {iiy 49,85
Total of Adjustment (66.87)
Mef profitioss as per Ind AS {106.22)
Material adjustments to the statemeant of cash flows T Millions
For the year ended March 31, 2018 -
: Pravious Ind A% Ind AS
Particulars GAAP ar!ijustmunls
Met cash flows from operating activilios 268,77 [4.83) 253.84
Mot cash flows from investing activities 82,15 4 .93 ar 08
Met cash flows from financing activities [365.50) [0.0)] (365.60)
MNet increasalidecrease) in cash and cash aguivalens (4.08} 0.00 {4.88)
Cash and cash egulvalents al bezginring of year 1127 .00 11.27
Cash and cash equivalents &t and of year B.28 000 6.38
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TK Tall Faad Prvabe Limitad
Notes to Financial Statements

Mote 2% FIRST TIME ACDPTION OF IND A%
Notos 1o First fime adoption of Ind AS |

Mota i] - Applization of ssrvicg | W ArT:

-l'-p|1!1l\5‘.\|: A of Ind A5 17 “Service Coneassionaine Artangament jg appEzebie to the Company which provides Suilanca o0 actourdng by the cpuralors of PlEke=oprivale
BHMWICD COMCAsSign ANEVIRERLE urlur whish prale secor andtes Bt pate in the devalopment, financing coeraton s malabnarey of infresschurg for 'p.-uu.sncu"- o publ
Befvicos The Compeny b engaged i o Beslge, Bukd, Fnanes, Oparaig and Transter (DEFOT) hasis @g (ol mads ncluding nperetion sl mainreannee Fwrued durlg 1he

ConcRkdLn posiod, Alar the upiny of the consassion Period the Company is raqdmg to handovar ha infrasluciurn | &, tha i roads & G Fanur Lo (Nesional Higheay
Authontes of Indim (M),

A5 par dtho saleat featuas of tha CANCESSIGN ATangAmEnd, T sponine Aes a Twolold Refivity based on which PEWSRIL IS MG in Hn Iesncial $laumanis whith 1E 0 e
with ihg PEGUETTARE of Apgwric & of ind B3 11

- an opraling ann maintegarco achuiy in respedd of tha Aasets undy tin CONERISaN during the speratiovwl | ravieae 5 ReEgnn N accawdarica wWith Ied A5 48,

I oo oF 5 acliviios (ke Lampiry roaahans corsidwalion fram Gserg of ol mads as gl o rocoive S for WSS Af ot ruads in canainension G i fimarciag ard
cimbructan of tho siliastrustarn ee which un ilsngitie assale & ruongnbed in F financial Atmemonts, Aso s por e GICESERR sTaigemont BEM-OF e propead ksl L
tovane] Ly & unsnadibonal fight o resabie payownls frum the ararear i BHAL wWhich fas bsan rocognized as Geanl renivesie T HAY Urder the iy Tisancinl Aaget and
Iréangible assids fios BAsA recogaed o the ment of Wiguarantard balance, ol which e armaurd i dopnndsne o the srient o e of Iz imfrastuciurg,

Retreapecivg apulicanion of Servics Concoaslansrs Aamyoment” ke lod W shanga 1n fe accownling pedsy of Sompany a5 o f iranaltiae date 1 lusskicrion,
IEQniien dnd Msusurument af constraclion of assats g Mainbenanch chigatany uter e Aervics concessinn Ll =T

D acsours 0f ssove e has baar Sacrease in Intanpisie sssels arizging en wccoun of toll coleesen bk uf T 1342 20 milkons as ar March 31,2018 and ¥ 1342 00 yellions
# al fprk 1, 2015 whwiain tha Crmpany hag an ureandivonal right in meséas paymints bmm e granior e, WA WS s boon deducted fium e ene et irfangliv TS
und rercanized ag financial R3gess Wk earlior Lnee the Indiun SALF wig consilerud B3 pracnoter's conlibutinn and Wan rucognivad a2 Captal Rosers in acconda sy wih
A& AT Accaunifing far Conummmaent grals’.

Furthar, inpuct of financie assals runognised Undel Gunassoneine amangminant (ré of descounling) resuhing o keeasn in Tubef Equily T 448.15 mikons @ ol March 1, 201d
ard as atApnl 1, 215 r

Mireves thard hias boen daoreasn in Intangibl sscis and decreas in Eael equity, arigig on ancouet ef applicsson of dennca corcessien amangamenl, of 1955 53 milicn as
acManh 37 096 ard $905.80 milions A s Apnl 1, 2015 and decroase in iiss of 76,23 milong Tarthe year ancad March 31 2m4p, |

Nate [m] - Recognitian of dalermed tax asaaty/liabdily us per ind A% 12 |

b1 AR 12 ragures an iy 0 moognze dolerad e using balance snnet spproach, which s based on 16 wmperary dforercos batwser the (i base of &n assal or Fabiity
and il& canmying amaur in the finencial Sistements, Dalemad 18 s provided i full dor a0 Hamparary diffarsnces aising botween ta lax basos of asseis and kebilties ang thar
neial statamsants. The

carmying amount in tha fira COMERNY MCOENIAS feformed Lk nasees fer all coductble temperany oiffaronces meuding urused tee ksses camod farwarg t

v wabert thai it is prabastslo that taabie prafils wiid e aveilable agains: ‘which the deducliols tlemporany difforences car b wilized

Urdnr irdian GAAP deformed tax was reconizas basod on ncoms Approact and defored tax agsels in case of unused 1ax Insses carlod forwarnd are recogrizod if thora b
wirlual cartainty that sifliGent fuluine laxablo neome wil e availabiv to renies the sam Hance nn secount of abavn doforned 1hx assals wero nod MEGEnEe uader the Indan
Ghap

G Buoount of abave Fier has bean noease i dufered the assal (ned) resulfing in incraass in Todal Eguiy by ¥ B} TEmilians a8 ar farch 31 2010 ard T AT 24 milkara a5 gt
Apnl 1, 2015 and decreasa in loas of 149 85 milhcng during 1 year ended March 21, 2016 mainly on accéunt of ind A8 AT|LATENG BENEining o relospochvi aoplicatian af
servicy cancession avargemanl and defomed kax 556l recogrized for unused |ax losses camod fanward as porind A5 12,

Indl A% 108 requines franssclian costs incurmad sowards angnalicn of barfowings % bo ooducted from the carrying amount af Bermowings on miie reeoghiton. The winme i
rucognized as inberest as part af the attactive intares rale method aver tha pedad af B Borowing
|

Linder indiaf GAAP, thess wers capilaised o inlangia assets a5 Par A5 16 ‘Barruwing eosd as ard when moured |

O swoount ol Sbove thans has hean inerease in borrowings by T1.51 malions as at March 31, 2018 and ¥1.03 milions as al Manch 31, H018 with & comes ing afjusrent 1o
Ircargble aseals. This resubied in incesse in loss by 30,40 millions for the yea: anded March 31 3018

Nl {iv] - Resurtacing cbligation recemmized s peor Ind AS 37 |

|
A3 Per ba‘vice CONCARSIGN amangement, th Caimpany & cbipaiod b eamy 0ut resurlading of the roads wrder 0 Sarcession puncd dvery hys yeas. Tho Comgany ostmates
nn Wkely provssion requirnd tewards resurfacing and accrues he costs an an wiraghl ina basls cver the puicd B9 the ong of which resurtacng would bo ranuied n ta
Etaiemant of Pront and Loss

Linaer Indsn GAAR the same abligation wis receanzad in e yoar in which rasuitacing was required a3 per he sancessian Ao

e met ettoct of the above 8 decraass in letal Beuity by 2195,35 milkons a3 & Aiarch 31, 2018 ard 250,70 milions a5 At Agrd 1, 015 with RoffREDONdIng rewdse in maarasing
pravilans (nat ol wiwinding dBesunt]. Ths resultod b Incresse n lese by TL04 65 milvons for Lhe yoar ended March 3, 201A

Péabe [v] - Discounting of MRebsntion marmy

Ind AE 105 roguires brangial instramane 1o b Mranurisd at fair valie at aydial roagnifice in casa for fnancal Wabity nol al dor valkoe threugh prufit or lnss, hewever it B fair
wahu o the finaneial oty 2l iilial rannglilan dittecs Tnoen bansarctiem prce s, fai valn af e consideration EURn oF received than thn Aty shall jwaugnina e Inefrumeres.
2l il fair vslun in the presant case lho Compemy has discowled tha RnStion Money payanle I arder b relect e fir seie of he 1ulurenn money al sl mcoganion e
initial measuiemone sihaaquentty 1he Sabiitios wniid Be recogriced at ametised cost,

Lraes indian GWAAR retoninn merey was reeguizen at hiatefical cost and no dsem 1ling wak fequired (o bo dnes,

Tha fisrounting has buw recngrivesd &8 8 fnancs cusl Tha nat edfecs of the abuve is danmasses in tolal equily by 1 24 56 mibiong ms al March 31, 3090 arad £17. 18 miliana A5 uL
Apnl 1, 2075 with comespunding increase in Hnance cost. This rmslisd n Ereaby inloss by 1760 milien fu the year sadad Mard: 31 2096

Mnew ik Classilicalion of sunpedinase debt [nsbuments |En maFane of equily) |
ird AS 32 mquires classihcalion of finoanial nstruments esued indo inanes) | Aliites o squity. Subeedinee dabt msuments Waued de ol meet the defiriten of a iy

tabity, o U boemes o nat cast a conliaciual abligaten on the the Canmpany oo make any gapmwnt of principal &nd acoued irsonast I‘I'.\qm-unn casl ar athar lhansial asset
Fiether, snce the instiumeonts ans ran=zondgtible, the SCompany is not required bo seoe tha ontracts by meuance of e own aigaily nstruments,

undar [ilian GAAR, these instrumants were mpnned as bamovengs. [

Oin aceount of abova Fiere has bean imcrease in folal ety by 7 1522 70 malbors as 21 Mareh W1, 2046 awd T 1377 7O milons &6 4l Apnl 7, 2015 wih & correspond
i bormoraings. |

e g L
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TK Tell Road Private Limitod
Motes to Financial Statements

Note 30-Gratuity and other Post-employment benefit plans

FMillions
a) Detined contribution plan
The fallowing amouni recognized as an expense in Staterment of frafit 8nd loes on aceaunt of Provident fund and other funds. There are no
other atdigations other than the contnbution payabla 1o the respective authorities.
. - As al i Azat | As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015
|

Contribution to prowident fund and other funds 0.28 | 0 &8 3.33

Total 0,28 | 0.3 = 033

ap Dafined benefit plan !
The campany has & defined sansfit Plan {Grotuity) fer its employeas. The gratuity plan is gaverned by the Payment of rabuity aei, 191:1 Under the Act, employee

w0 has completad five yoars of service is enfifled 1o speific benefit The level of benefits provided dupands on the members length of service ang 4 Lary at
refifemant sge. Evary crmploves who has completed tve yoars or more of sordes gets a pratuity on daparture at 15 Giys salary (last drawn salary) far aach uomipleled
year of eerving 8z per tha provision of th Fayment af Gratuily Ant, 1972 with Il cedling on greluity af R&.1,000,0006. The said pratuity plan (s funded,

Particul Asat AR ab ey .ﬁl;
bt March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Opening defined benafit liability / (assets) 218 1.54 1.08
Mot employee benofit expense recognised in the employes coet
Current service cost 0.3z D.25 023
Interast cost on benefit abdigation 017 | @12 0.0%
Net banofit expense .49 | 0.37 0.32
Amount recerded in Other Comprehensive income (OCI)
Measurament during the pediod due ta |
Actuarial loss ¢ (gain) arlging froem change In financial azsumptions Q.22 0.0 Q.18
Acluarial loss ¢ (gain) arising en account of experience changes [=R=h] . .
Experiance {gains)iosses - 028 - 0.0%
Amount recognized in OC) 0.az 027 D.14
Benefit Paid - 105 -
Clasing net defined benefil lability ! [asset) 2.44 2.18 1.54
e =T Ag at
Pariculars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Cpening fair value of plan assets 217 1.54 1.14
Net employee benefit cxpense recognised in the employes cost
Interes! cost on benefit abligation 0.18 Q.13 o1a
[Zain) / losses on setiemant A . F
Net benafit expense 018 013 a1
Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income [{=1n}] |
Measinomant during the period due to - ;
Raturn an pian assets, excluding amounts included in interest Bpansclimoome) - oot - 0.0 0.3
Amount recognized In OC1 - oot - | 0.01 0. 3%
Employer contrituliona/premiums e 1.06 0.51 005
Benefits Paid - 1.06 - ni17
7 34 247 1.54
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Motes to Financial Statements

The nat liability disclosed above relates o fundad plan is a3 fllows

I Millions
Particulars As al As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Fresom value of lundod abfigations 744 214 1.54
Fair value of plan assots 234 217 154
Amount nol recognised s an asset (asen calllng) . . =
.10 0gi. — 0.00
Ned liability I8 bifurcated as followss -
Current - -
Man-cusrant bg |00 o.og
Total 0.0 " 001 0.00
Particulars As at As al | Az at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015
|
Discount rate T.05% 7.80% TAER
Expecivd rate of retum oo plan assate lpa)
Salery sscalalion rate (p.a) #.50% S0 {.80%
Indian Assured Lves Indian Assured Lives Indean Assured Les
Mariality pre-ratiremen| Mertality Murtality Mortality
(M006-08) [200E-0R) [POnE-08)
& quantitative =nalvsis for significant Bssumption = as shown below:
Particular As al As Bl Al al

March 31, 2017 March 3, 2016

April 1, 2018

Assumptions -Discount rate
Sanailivity Laval

50 bp 50 b ED b
Impact on defined banefit obligation -in % increase -6.14% -5, 75% -5 50%
Impact on defined benafit obligation -in % decrense B.G6% B.22% B_45%
Asgumptions Future salary Increases
Sensitivily Level 50 bp 50 bp 50 bp
Impact on defined benafit obligation -n % increase B.80% 8.21% G.AB%
Imp&ct an defined benefit cbligation -in % decrease H.15% 15.79% -6.03%
Tha table below shows the expected cash flow profile of tha benefits 1o be paid to the current mambershig of the
plan basad on past service of the emplayoes B3 af the valuation date
Particulars Axs at As at J‘I A% al

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Aprit 1, 2018
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting pericd) 007 n.07 005
Between 2 and 5 years 0,32 0.3z o2z
Batween & and 9 years 0.54 0,51 033
Fer and Beyond 10 years 578 5a7 415
Total expectod paymants 671 6.36 4.77
The average duration of the delined benefit plan obligation et the end af the repaiting
period 12.79 years 11 98 yoara 12 47 yaars
Plan Assets Compositicn
Az at A at A5 at
r——" March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Non Qucdied |
Inaurer Managed Funds 2.34 i 217 ba
234 AT 1.54

A raccnciliation of the asset cailing during the Inter-yaluation period 13 glven below
Dpening value of as3et celing = -
Add | [nfereet an oponing balance on assel ouiling 4
Remeasurermant due 1o E

Changes In surplusidehicies] =

Cosnyg value of asset cailing i =
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Note 31- Events aftor reporting periad

There are no subsequent event after the reperting year which required adjustments to the Finaneizl

Note 32 - Earning per share:

Statements.

Year ended _| I ¥ear ended

Particulars ! March 31, 2017 [March 31, 2018
Profit { Loss attribnrlable to equity shareholders (Rs Milliona) (A} (88 .35) (105.04)
Weighled average number of £quily shares for basic and diluted ea rmings per 1,27.55 650 I 1,27 55,650
share ([) [
Earnings / (Loss) per share {Basic and diluted) [Rupees) 1AB) [7.00) (8.23)
Mominal value of equity shares (Rupees) 10.00 10.00
Note 33 - Contingent liabilities .

* Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2017

Differences in bal.a!mc:es as per bank loan confirmations and books of accounts
mainly on account of interest rate resetling are under reconciliation with the
bankers. The Project companyexpect to settle these =o0on and da not anticipate
any further liabilily on account of interest

0.90
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Note 34- Consequent upon the de-monetisation of cumency notes by the Central Government, toll collection had been suspended
from Movember 8, 2016 to Decembar 2, 2018 for which the companyGroup has raised claims on NHAI for reimbursament of lhe
expenses incurred duning this period as per the provisions of the Concession Agreernent entered into betwsen the company and
NHAI read aiong with NHAI circular dated Movember 29, 2016 and Decambor 8, 2016 in Lhis regard. Atmount of 2 28,50 milions
claimed, being contractually enforceable and certain of recovery has been recognised as other operaljngl income. Az at March 31,
2017, 2 7.44 millions was receivable and disclosed under Other Financials Assets — Current,

Note 35 -During the period the company had appolnted & toll consultant and have re-estimated the toll revenue over the remaining

concassion period Accordingly, Intangible Assets have hasn amortisad prospectively as per the revisad estimated ol revenue.

Note 36 - Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses (Refer Note 17) far the year ended March 31, 2017 includes the following.

) In the month of December 2015, due to heavy floods in the state of Tamil Madu which had an Iimpact on the company. The
company had preferred claim for the loss due to the fiocds. Pending settiement of the same, the amounts Incurred during the year
ended March 31, 2016 and year ended March 31, 2017 for restoration of damages at site were bosked under advances as Claims
Receivable. During the year ended March 31, 2017, the insurance claims were seftled at ¥ 59,63 Millions. Accordingly the
differznce of Claims Receivable and the Insurance Claims actually received, amounting to 7 68.91 Milliohs was charged off 1o the
Statement of Profit & Loss under the head Maintenance of Roads farming part of Toll Operation and Mainlenance expenses during
the year ended March 31, 2017,

b} The company, incurred cerlain expenditure pertaining to installation of Welgh-in-Motion {WIM) systems in tolling lanes at toll
plazas and other iterns amounting to T 18.12 Millions. The same has been charged off to Statement of Profit and Loss under the
head Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the year ended March I, 2017

¢} Pursuant to the NHAI Circular dated November 15, 2016, wherein NHAI prescribed that micro surfacing may be used for the

renewal course, maintenance and repair on national highways for at least 25% to 30% of the total lengih. Based on the said
circular the company have estimated the provision for Resurfacing expenses in the books of aceounts,

Note 37 -Statement of cash received and deposited during demonitisation period

T Millians
. Other
Particulars Spaciad bank denomination Total
notes icikian
g i 49 ' 0.00 1.49
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2018 1.
{+] Permitted receipts .21 2743 3363
{-) Permitted payments = - -
() Amount deposited in barik 769 26.33 34.02
Clnsing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 1.10 1.10
Mote 38 - Auditor Remuneration T Millions
Year ended Year ended
Parliculars March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2018
Audit Fees 0.47 0.40
Certification Fees 011 0.0z
0.58 0.42 |
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Note 39 Mrevious year figures have been regrouped and
comparable to those for current year.

As per our attached report of even date

For MK P S & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 302014E

P

f
‘—Marendra Khandal

Hartner
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re-arranged wheraver necessary to make them
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